

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE REAL ESTATE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE OF NEW YORK CITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION April 13, 2021

A meeting of the Real Estate and Finance Committee (the "Committee") of the Board of Directors (the "Board") of New York City Economic Development Corporation ("NYCEDC") was held telephonically on Tuesday, April 13, 2021.

The following members of the Committee were present telephonically:

Mitch Draizin James McSpiritt Patrick J. O'Sullivan, Jr. Mark Russo Betty Woo

Members of NYCEDC staff also were present.

The meeting was chaired by Mr. O'Sullivan and called to order at 2:04 p.m. Meredith Jones, an Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of NYCEDC, served as secretary of the duly constituted meeting, at which a quorum was present.

1. Approval of the Minutes of the January 19, 2021 Committee Meeting

It was moved that the minutes of the January 19, 2021 meeting of the Committee be approved, as submitted. Such a motion was seconded and unanimously approved.

2. Kaufman Astoria Studios Sublease Amendments

At this time, Mr. O'Sullivan recused himself with respect to this item and left the meeting. The remainder of the meeting was chaired by Mr. McSpiritt.

Jinquan Liang, an Assistant Vice President of NYCEDC, presented a proposal for amendments to NYCEDC's existing subleases with Kaufman Astoria Studios affiliated entities ("KAS") for certain property located at Block 643, Lot 1 (the "Development Lease") and certain property located at Block 644, Lot 45 (the "Expansion Studio Lease") on the Tax Map of the Borough of Queens (collectively, the "Subleases"), to modify certain terms and provisions of the Subleases in connection with KAS's contemplated sale of its leasehold interests and business operations, on substantially the terms set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

In answer to a question from Mr. Russo, Darryl Connelly, a Senior Vice President

of NYCEDC, stated that KAS was in negotiations with several potential purchasers, and that KAS planned on selecting a purchaser in the next few months for an anticipated closing in July. In answer to another question from Mr. Russo, Mr. Connelly stated that for transactions like this, NYCEDC typically would approve the purchaser and the assignment of the lease to it at a staff level and then run the purchaser through a background investigation. Mr. Connelly added that the proposed amendments would clarify transaction payments going forward. In answer to a third question from Mr. Russo, Mr. Connelly stated that KAS was currently negotiating the sale price with several potential purchasers and that it was anticipated that the transaction payment to NYCEDC would amount to a few million dollars. He stated that the estate of George Kaufman wanted to sell the studio.

In answer to a question from Mr. McSpiritt, Mr. Connelly stated that KAS wanted to make sure that the consideration paid by the purchaser would become part of the basis for the next sale down the road. In answer to a question from Ms. Woo, Mr. Connelly explained that as a result of questions and concerns that the potential buyers had for KAS, it became clear that clarification of how transaction payments worked going forward was needed. In answer to a question from Mr. Draizin, Mr. Connelly stated that NYCEDC did not know who the specific purchaser would be but knew of several potential purchasers. In answer to a second question from Mr. Draizin, Mr. Connelly stated that NYCEDC would undertake a background investigation of a potential purchaser it was considering giving final approval to and consider whether it had the financial capacity to operate the studio.

In answer to a question from Mr. McSpiritt, Mr. Connelly explained how the transaction payments that would be paid to NYCEDC would be determined. In answer to an additional question from Mr. McSpiritt, Mr. Liang stated that the de-mapped street for what NYCEDC called the Back Lot Lease, would also be part of the sale transaction. Mr. Connelly then pointed out that no transaction payment would be due upon sale for that Back Lot Lease parcel.

A motion was made that the Committee recommend that the Board of Directors approve the matter set forth for approval in the Proposed Resolution section of Exhibit A hereto. Such motion was seconded and approved. Mr. O'Sullivan recused himself from voting on this matter.

3. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the meeting, pursuant to a motion made, seconded and approved the meeting of the Committee was adjourned at 2:22 p.m.

	ilversmith h (Jun 24, 2021 10:47 EDT)	
Assistan	t Secretary	
Dated:	06/24/2021	
Brooklyr	, New York	

EXHIBIT A

KAUFMAN ASTORIA STUDIOS SUBLEASE AMENDMENTS Board of Directors Meeting April 28, 2021

OVERVIEW: NYCEDC proposes to modify certain terms and provisions of

certain subleases with Kaufman Astoria Studios ("KAS") affiliated entities in connection with the contemplated sale of their

leasehold interests and business operations.

LESSOR: The City of New York

LESSEE AND

SUBLESSOR: NYCEDC

SUBLESSEES: Development Lease - Astoria Studios Limited Partnership II

Expansion Studio Lease – KAS Production Center LLC, and New Stage LLC, as tenants in common (collectively the "Subleases")

SITE LOCATION

AND

DESCRIPTION: The s

The subleased properties are located in Astoria, Queens (the "Premises"). The Development Lease (Block 643, Lot 1) includes the main studio building and the Expansion Studio Lease (Block 644, Lot 45) includes the expansion studio building. The properties are within the former Army Pictorial Center, now known as the Astoria Studios Historic District (see the Site Map enclosed).

The entire Development Lease parcel and 35% of the Expansion Studio Lease parcel were conveyed to the City by the United States of America, acting by and through its General Services Administration, pursuant to a quitclaim deed dated February 17, 1982 (the "Deed") and the Historic Surplus Property Program that is administered by the National Park Service.

PROPOSED TRANSACTION:

KAS is in the process of negotiating the sale of its leasehold interests and business operations under the foregoing Subleases to a purchaser. NYCEDC is entitled to 25% of the net sales proceeds and net refinancing proceeds pursuant to the Development Lease and 17.5% of the net sales proceeds and net refinancing proceeds pursuant to the Expansion Studio Lease (both hereinafter referred to as "Transaction Payment(s)").

Pursuant to Deed requirements, ½ of any Transaction Payment generated under the Development Lease is required to be deposited into the Kaufman Public Purpose Fund ("PPF") administered by NYCEDC. As of February 28, 2021, the total balance of this PPF is \$2,743,036.25. The money in this PPF

can only be used for public historic preservation, park and recreation purposes. The other ½ of such Transaction Payment is to be used on economic development activities in the City of New York. Similarly, 35% of any Transaction Payment generated under the Expansion Studio Lease is also required to be deposited into the PPF.

The Subleases allow KAS to deduct its initial investment and mortgages on the property in the calculation of net sales proceeds. KAS has requested amendments to the Subleases to clarify the calculation of future Transaction Payments after the first initial sale, in order to facilitate its negotiations with potential purchasers. NYCEDC also wishes to clarify when Transaction Payments apply.

PROPOSED LEASE MODIFICATIONS:

<u>Development Lease – 10th Amendment and Expansion Studio</u> Lease – 2nd Amendment:

It is proposed that with respect to subsequent transfers of the Development Lease and Expansion Studio Lease, or interests in tenants, to clarify the Transaction Payment provisions and that they apply to subsequent transfers under both leases and that the basis and allowable deduction for the calculation of future Transaction Payments shall include the consideration paid by such subsequent tenant to acquire the Development Lease and Expansion Studio Lease or interests in tenants and cash invested by such subsequent tenant in capital improvement(s).

For subsequent sales, the Sublease amendments will provide for a six (6) month grace period in which a transferee can obtain financing related to such sale without paying an additional Transaction Payment. However, any such mortgage amount cannot then be deducted from any Transaction Payment due in connection with any future sales by said transferee.

A tenant under the Subleases would be subject to a 25% MWBE program goal for Tenant Improvement work over \$250,000 and any maintenance work. In addition, they would have to work with NYCEDC on a recruitment strategy for local job seekers at the tenant ownership level but not at the film production (licensee) level.

USE:

Pursuant to the Deed and the foregoing Subleases, KAS and future tenant(s) may use and operate the Premises for a television, motion picture, radio, audio and visual film and tape production, broadcasting, and cable facility and ancillary office space, and ancillary parking.

BENEFIT TO THE PUBLIC:

The Sublease amendments provide clarity for the impending sale and upcoming and future Transaction Payments. A portion of such Transaction Payments will be placed into the PPF and may be utilized for public historic preservation, park and recreation

purposes, which is beneficial to City residents.

ZONING: M1-5 (subject to deed restriction for film-related use)

PUBLIC

APPROVALS: No public approvals required

PROPOSED

RESOLUTION: The approval of the foregoing Sublease amendments

substantially as described herein

NYCEDC

PROJECT CODE: 178

STAFF: Winthrop Hoyt, Senior Vice President, Asset Management

Darryl Connelly, Senior Vice President, Asset Management Jinquan Liang, Assistant Vice President, Asset Management

Attachment A - Site Map

Site Map

Master Lease: Parcels A, B, C, F, G, H, J, K

KAS Development Lease: Parcel G
KAS Expansion Studio Lease: Parcels A, H, J, K
AMMI Lease: Parcels B, C
OWN Charter School Lease: Parcel F

KAS Back Lot Lease: De-mapped Street

Frank Sinatra School (DOE Lease): Parcel D, E

